ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 16, 2005
1:26 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lesil MGQuire, Chair
Represent ati ve Tom Ander son
Representati ve John Coghil |
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Pete Kott
Representative Les Gara
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW S): DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTI ONS - CONTAI NMENT MODEL
- HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 103
"An Act requiring an actionable claim against the state to be
tried without a jury."

- MOVED HB 103 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 187

"An Act establishing the Al aska capital incone account wthin
the Alaska permanent fund; relating to deposits into the
account; relating to certain transfers regarding the Anerada
Hess settlenment to offset the effects of inflation on the Al aska
permanent fund; and providing for an effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 188

"An Act establishing the State of Alaska Capital Corporation;
aut hori zing the issuance of bonds by the State of Al aska Capital
Corporation to finance capital inprovenents in the state; and
providing for an effective date."”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 16, 2005



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 103
SHORT TI TLE: CLAI MS AGAI NST THE STATE
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) KELLY

01/ 24/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 24/ 05 (H) STA, JUD, FIN

03/ 03/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 03/ 05 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

03/ 03/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 04/ 05 (H STA RPT 1DNP 5NR

03/ 04/ 05 (H DNP: GRUENBERG,

03/ 04/ 05 (H NR: GARDNER, GATTGQ, RAMRAS, ELKI NS,
SEATON

03/ 09/ 05 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

03/ 09/ 05 (H Heard & Held

03/ 09/ 05 (H M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 16/ 05 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

Ki m Engli sh, MA, Research Director

Division of Crimnal Justice

Col orado Departnent of Public Safety

Denver, Col orado

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented the [sex offender] containnment
nodel on behal f of Departnment of Corrections (DOC).

REPRESENTATI VE BERTA GARDNER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Asked questions during the containnent
nodel presentation.

PORTI A PARKER, Deputy Conm ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner - Juneau

Depart ment of Corrections (DOC)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Responded to a question during the
cont ai nment nodel presentation.

Jeffrey Jenks, Omner and President

Am ch & Jenks, Inc.
Wheat Ri dge, Col orado

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 16, 2005



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Assisted with the presentation of the [sex
of f ender ] cont ai nnent nodel on behal f of Depar t ment of
Corrections (DQC).

Peggy Heil, MSW LCSW Consultant

Respondi ng to Sexual Violence Proactively (RSVP)

Canon City, Colorado

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Assisted with the presentation of the [sex
of f ender ] cont ai nnent nodel on behal f of Depar t ment of
Corrections (DOC).

GAI L VO GTLANDER, Chief Assistant Attorney GCeneral - Statew de
Secti on Supervi sor

Torts and Worker's Conpensati on Secti on

Civil Division (Anchorage)

Department of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions during discussion of
HB 103.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR LESIL MGIRE called the House Judiciary Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:26:30 PM Represent ati ves
McGQuire, Kott, Guenberg, and Gara were present at the call to
order. Representatives Anderson, Coghill, and Dahlstrom arrived
as the neeting was in progress. Representative Berta Gardner

was al so i n attendance.

OVERVI EW( S)

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTI ONS - CONTAI NMVENT MODEL

1: 27: 31 PM

CHAIR McGUI RE announced that the first order of business would
be the overview by Departnent of Corrections regarding the [sex
of fender] contai nnent nodel .

1: 27: 39 PM

KIM ENGLISH, MA, Research Director, Division of Crimnal
Justice, Colorado Departnent of Public Safety, presented the
[ sex of fender] containment nodel on behalf of Al aska Departnent
of Corrections (DCC). She described a study conducted by the
U S. Departnent of Justice, Bureau of Justice Statistics which
determ ned that alnost half of the inmates in state prisons had

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 16, 2005



actually been wunder correctional supervision, on probation or
parole, at the tine of the offence for which they are currently
doing tine. She said:

In fact, 24 percent of the prisoners who were serving
time for rape were under correctional supervision,
probation, or parole, when they were arrested for the

rape.... And 19 percent of prisoners serving tine for
sexual assault had been under correctional supervision
at the time of the [assault]. ... W want to talk

about the need for specialized sex offender nanagenent
practices; why this is not a typical crimnal justice

population. ... One of the challenges that we face
with sex offenders is that rape victins don't report
this crine. W actually don't have very much
i nformation about these crines. The cont ai nnent

approach is about obtaining information and then
trying to translate what we Jlearn into treatnent
approaches that wll be useful for the offender and
contain the offender in the community.

M5. ENGLI SH pointed out that Alaska ranks first in the United
States in rapes per capita, and the reported rape rate is twce
the national average. She noted that no one knows if there is a
| arge difference between the actual incidence of sexual assault
and those reported to authorities. In 2003, the Al aska
Department of Public Safety calculated that there is one
forcible rape [in Alaska] every 15 hours, and rapes have
i ncreased between 2000 and 2003 by 21.7 percent. She said:

More than half of rape victins have been raped nore
t han once. That's either because [during] the
single episode during which they were raped they had
multiple assaults perpetrated on them or you have a
single victim who is raped over a duration of many
years.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked Ms. English is she could break
that data out to determne how nmany of those victinms had been
victins of totally separate rapes.

MS. ENGLI SH stated that she did not have that information. She
stated that there is evidence that once a person is victimzed,
he/she is nore likely to be victimzed again, and that the
trauma from subsequent assaults may be greater than the first
tinme.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 16, 2005



CHAIR MGQU RE told Ms. English that any follow up data that she
could get for the commttee would be hel pful.

M5. ENGLI SH pointed out that victins of sexual assault are six
times nore likely to develop a Post Traumatic Stress Disorder
(PTSD), three tinmes nore likely to devel op nmj or depression, and
13 times nore likely to attenpt suicide. She continued:

At an estimated cost of $86,000 per victim this would
be their lifetine cost, tinmes $521 victins a year, the

State of Alaska is probably losing $45 mllion a year
per year for the lifetinme costs of those who've been
assaulted that year. But only 16 percent of rape
victinms report the crine, and only half of those tend
to report it wthin the first five years. So when
they do get reported, ... it usually doesn't result in
arrest. ... Perpetrators choose victins whom they

think will not report the crine.
1:37:30 PM

M5. ENGLISH explained that 60-65 percent of the victins of
sexual assault are under the age of 18, and 30 percent are under
11. She stated, "Studies of victins of sexual assault have been
pretty clear that those who are younger and who know the
perpetrator tend to delay disclosure.” In one study, children
ages 3-12 explained that they delayed disclosure because they
feared being disbelieved, punished, or unprotected.

MS. ENGLI SH cont i nued:

If you ask adult victinms why they did not report the
crime, 71 percent said they were concerned about their
famly knowng...., 68 percent were concerned about
ot hers knowi ng, generally, 69 percent were concerned
about being blamed by others.... As a society we
still [blame the victin], and the result is that very
few victins report the crine. ... So a goal of
containment, given the fact that npbst victins never
report the crinme, is to obtain information about the

of f ender. In a nutshell, the contai nment approach is
grounded in ... this multidisciplinary triangle, where
you have the polygraph exam ner, the treatnent
provider, and the crimnal justice system - which in
this case is the Departnent of Corrections - working
together to manage individual offenders. On top of
that, what these ... additional policies are on the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 16, 2005



side are ways of shoring up the original containnent
so that you've got kind of a web of different things

going on to keep this person very structured ... in
their lifestyle in the comunity, and hi ghly
restricted. So what needs to happen, and what the
Department of Corrections is doing, 1is developing

policies around revocation procedures, enpl oynent
restrictions, [and] |eisure tinme nonitoring.

1: 44: 56 PM
M5. ENGLI SH conti nued:

The jurisdiction of t he of f ender and t he
responsibility for the offender falls on the crimnal
justice system ... The crimnal justice system nakes
sure that treatnment and polygraph [are] integrated.
They're in charge of the case, basically, ... and
they' re making sure that everything is happening.

CHAIR McGQUI RE asked if offenders could be in this program while
still in a correctional facility.

MS. ENGLI SH responded affirmatively.

CHAIR M@U RE asked, if the offender was on parole or probation,
if he/she would have to conme in for a schedul ed pol ygraph.

M5. ENGLI SH responded that this was correct. She expl ained that
this program could be used in the prisons as well as in the
community for those on probation. She enphasized the inportance
of parole, "You don't want people going out wthout any kind of
supervision afterwards.” In Colorado, she said, the parole
board won't release a convicted sex offender unless he/she
agrees to treatnent, polygraph, and supervi sion.

1: 49: 44 PM
MS. ENGLI SH conti nued:

Hopefully during the «course of treatnment vyou're
finding out exactly what their high-risk behavior is.

Once they're out in the community, ... one of the
things you' re asking them is, "Wat have you been
doing in the last six nonths?" ... and if they commt

a new crine, and they admt to you that they've
commtted a new crinme during that period, then they're

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 16, 2005



going to get prosecuted. If it's before that and we
find out sonething that's very dangerous, ... then you
crank down on them even nore and you mght increase
honme visits, you mght put them on GPS nonitoring, you
m ght have wurinalysis testing nuch nore frequently.
So there are many ways of trying to get in and
structure their lives and make them unconfortable wth
maki ng decisions that will put thenselves and others
at risk.

1:52: 32 PM

M5. ENGLISH described a Canadian study focusing on 400 sex
of fenders who had been released from prison and were on parole.
She pointed out that the 200 who failed parole supervision saw
t hensel ves as no risk, had diverse victimtypes, tended to fai
early in the process, had access to victins, had attitudes of
sexual entitlenment, and had poor social influences. She
commented that one can learn a lot from asking offenders about
their deviant sexual behavior in the past.

M5. ENGLISH recalled past studies that she and her colleagues
had conducted in which they conpared what was known about
particul ar offenders before sentencing to what was known after
treat ment. During treatnent offenders were required to wite
out their sex history, and then they woul d have pol ygraph tests.
She explained that the average nunber of victins of the
offenders in the study was tw, and the average nunber of
[offenses] in their sex history was 83, but after the first
pol ygraph test that nunber was doubled to 165, and after the
second polygraph test that nunber rose to 184. She noted that
this denonstrates how nmuch nore information [corrections
officers] are getting fromthe of fenders through this program

REPRESENTATI VE BERTA GARDNER, Al aska State Legislature, asked
Ms. English to explain the difference between the nunber of
victinms and the nunber of offenses.

M5. ENGLISH replied that sonmetinmes an offender will assault the
same victimnultiple tines.

2:00: 07 PM
M5. ENGLISH referred to a study of 223 sex offenders which
showed that at the tine of the offenders' court hearings, it was

known that 7 percent of them had assaulted both adults and
children. After the polygraph test it was found that the nunber

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 16, 2005



was actually 70 percent. O fenders often access their victins
t hrough patterned activities, and she opined that these patterns
can be discovered via a treatnent that includes polygraph
testing. She presented several addi ti onal exanples of
information gathered by using the polygraph testing on
of f enders.

CHAIR McGQU RE asked if the contai nment nodel had been used on
juvenil e of fenders.

M5. ENGLISH replied affirmatively. She comented that juveniles
have a lot to hide but still have the potential to be treated
and repatterned.

2: 06: 40 PM

PORTI A PARKER, Deputy Commi ssioner, Ofice of the Conm ssioner -
Juneau, Departnment of Corrections (DOC), in response to Chair
McGQuire, stated that the DOC has invited the juvenile justice
systemto participate in the contai nment nodel as well.

M5. ENGLISH noted that the word "paraphiliac" is applied to a
person havi ng devi ant sexual behaviors. She continued:

As a summary, the reason that we're trying to put so
much responsibility on the offender for giving us
information is because they're responsible and we're
trying to hold them accountabl e. And we're trying to
take the responsibility off of the victim to educate

us. We need the offender to educate us and tell us
everything he knows rather than what he wants us to
know.

2:09: 31 PM

JEFFREY JENKS, Owner and President, Amch & Jenks, Inc.,
assisting wth the ©presentation of the [sex offender]
cont ai nment nodel on behalf of Departnent of Corrections (DOC)

rel ayed that his conpany is a polygraph investigative firm which
has conducted over 34,000 exans, nost of which have been wth
sex offenders. Prior to 1989, he was testing accused sex
of fenders only prior to conviction and was focusing only on the
investigation [of a particular crine]. He commented, "At that
time, | was under the m staken notion that a rapist was just a
rapist.... | had no clue what | was going to be getting in when
we got into the post-conviction testing in 1989. And since that

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 16, 2005



time |'ve learned that the crossover behavi or of t hese
i ndi viduals is just unbelievable."

MR. JENKS noted that sex offenders are good polygraph subjects
because their acts are so secretive and their fear of being
caught is so great. However, offenders are al so experienced at
blam ng others for their behavior and therefore, he said, the
pol ygraph examner has to be very careful in question
formul ati on. He stated that polygraph use allows agencies to
hol d perpetrators accountable. If an offender is afraid of
detection, he continued, when "they conme in for a polygraph,
their fight or flight response takes over, which affects their
aut onom ¢ nervous system what we're neasuring: blood pressure,
pul se rate, blood volune, galvanic skin response, and their
respiratory patterns.”

2:13: 08 PM

MR. JENKS pointed out that a polygraph is very portable. He
gave a brief explanation of how nodern polygraphs work and how
they are being used for the purpose of gathering information.
In 2003 the National Acadeny of Sciences set the median accuracy
of polygraph tests at 89 percent, wth a range for 70-99
per cent. He stated that in Colorado polygraph examners limt
the nunber of pertinent questions to three or four to maintain
accuracy and reliability.

2:16:35 PM

MR. JENKS reviewed the process of the polygraph pre-test, in-
test, and post test. In the pre-test, the exam ner explains the
purpose of the exam tells the offender the questions that wll
be asked, and defines termnology. During the in-test phase

the polygraph charts are run and there are two to four very
specific, relevant questions wth tw or three conparison
guestions. The post test interview is very inportant, he said,
because "a vast mgjority of individuals that we test that fail
their test nmake adm ssions to us after the test that verify
those results.” He noted, "[The offenders] very rarely admt
everything; that's the role then [for the] therapist and the
[parole officer] to work with them the next several nonths,
getting nore adm ssions fromthem and then they conme back in for
anot her clarification polygraph.”

2:19: 19 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 9- March 16, 2005



MR. JENKS pointed out that there are three main types of tests.
The first is a sex history test to obtain information about past
victinms, past nethods used, the age of onset, frequency, and the
extent of crossover behavior. The second test is regarding the
specific crine, which is often run on the offender's first day
in treatnment "because the quicker you get them out of denial
the nore they're going to get out of treatnent and the quicker
they're going to get use out of treatnent."”

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked, "If they don't cone out of denial,
then ... they're not entitled to the probation tinme? They go
back to jail?"

MR. JENKS replied: "There is a tinme bar set that they have to
cone out of denial, and usually that tinme bar, | believe, is siXx
nonths in the State of Colorado. ... Alnost all of themdo."

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if the offenders are on probation
during those six nonths.

MR. JENKS replied that the offenders are on probation and
parole, and are in the comunity for those six nonths. He
opi ned that through [group therapy], often another offender can
bring a person out of denial better than a pol ygraph woul d.

MR. JENKS explained that the third test is the nmaintenance exam
in which the [therapist] checks out assault patterns and
behavi ors regardi ng supervision conditions in order to |ook for
precursor behavi ors.

2:23: 17 PM

MR. JENKS reviewed the three types of tests and presented
addi ti onal exanpl es.

CHAIR MGUI RE asked if other types of evidence are used during
t he pol ygraph test.

MR. JENKS responded that the polygraph test is nore accurate if
the examner is able to collect as nmuch information as possible
during the pre-test interview He continued reviewi ng the test
types and pointed out that the nonitoring polygraph is conducted

every three to six nonths. In Col orado, the state pays for the
pol ygraphs at first, but if lies are detected the offender nmnust
pay for the tests. He comented that this "has brought the
deception rate way down." He conti nued:

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 16, 2005



The nonitoring test provides information on whether
the offender is changing their lifestyle and applying

what they're learning in treatnment; it provides
informati on on whether they're continuing to engage in
hi gh-ri sk behaviors. ... The specific-issue tests are
used to clarify various risk concerns. It should be

schedul ed when concerns persist, even after increasing
surveill ance.

MR, JENKS referred to a 1986 study in which the deterrent effect
of polygraph testing on offenders on probation was shown to be
consi der abl e.

2.28:28 PM

MR. JENKS opined that the State of Alaska is doing an excellent
job on recruitnment and training of polygraph exam ners. He
said, "These tests are not easy to run; you would not want to
run one of these just comng out of polygraph school.™ He

characterized it as an art.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if there are polygraph schools that
are part of accredited universities.

MVR. JENKS replied that they are usually separate from
uni versities. He specul ated that there are probably 15-20 such
schools in the United States. After conpleting the schooling,
there are another 6-8 nonths of training, he said.

CHAIR MGURE asked if the polygraph examner is usually
enpl oyed by the state.

MR. JENKS responded that the examiner is generally a private
contractor.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL expressed concern regarding the use of
the term "art." He asked, "I like the idea of asking hard
guestions that you just can't duck, but is there any room for
t hat subjective, |eading [questioning]?"

2:31:34 PM
MR. JENKS answered that exam ners can use |eading questions. He

noted that it is inportant to have all of the tests videotaped
to allow for strict scrutiny.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 16, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL conmmented, "It seens to ne |ike sonebody

that is in several interviews in a nonth ... would be affected
by the series of events that a polygraph interview would
affect." He asked if there is a professional code to determ ne

when [the of fender] needs a break from pol ygraph tests.

MR. JENKS replied that there is such a procedure. He noted that
when an offender is being tested frequently, it can create
i nconcl usi ve tests. In Colorado the nunmber of tests that are
adm nistered are regulated very closely. The first year the
of fenders have three tests: sex history test, specific issue
test, and the maintenance or nonitoring test. He noted that if
the offender doesn't need a specific issue test, he/she wll
have two nmai ntenance tests within the year

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if the offender has the sane
i ntervi ewer throughout the treatnent.

MR. JENKS replied, "No, we switch themoff."
2:35:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked what kind of background education the
pol ygraph exam ners need to have.

MR. JENKS answered that the examners conme from all different
backgr ounds. In Colorado, he said, the examners are not
required to have any particular educational background before
starting polygraph school, but "a psychol ogy background of sone
sort ... can be very hel pful."

2:38:48 PM
VR. JENKS |isted i npl enent ati on consi derati ons: devel op
pr ocedur es, educat e t her api st s, devel op sex hi story

guestionnaires, set examner qualifications and requirenents,
vi deot ape the exans, develop a system to track and use the

results, educate stakeholders, and devel op consequences. In
summary, he stated that the value of polygraph testing in risk
assessnent includes: increased information on past offenses,

eval uation of treatnment effectiveness/conpliance, and eval uation
of the risk of child contact.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked if the offender is present while the
pol ygraph i s assessed.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 16, 2005



MR. JENKS replied, "If the interrogation is going nowhere and
they're not giving us any new information, sonetines ... 1'Il
just show them the chart and ... the conputerized scoring.
That's sonetinmes all they need to see to push them over to start
giving us information.”" But usually the offender is not present
when the assessnment is conpleted, he noted. He detailed the
i ssue of counterneasures and the consequences.

2:43: 59 PM

PEGGY HEIL, MSW LCSW Consultant, Responding to Sexual Violence
Proactively (RSVP), assisting with the presentation of the [sex
of f ender ] cont ai nnent nodel on behal f of Depart ment of
Corrections (DOC), spoke about the role of treatnent in the
cont ai nment approach. She explained that what has been found is
that neither treatnment nor polygraph alone is as effective as
both wused together; treatnent and supervision can be nore
effective when used in conjunction with a polygraph test. She
remar ked that when using the polygraph test, it is inportant for
the treatnment team to figure out what they will do with the
i nformati on about previous crines that is obtained through the
process. Some jurisdictions have opted to grant immunity on
past cri nmes.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if there is a problem with defense
attorneys objecting to people participating in a polygraph test.

M5. HEIL replied that that is not a problem because the testing
IS post conviction. She said, "One of the advantages of the
immunity situation is that you can collect the names of the
victinms, and if you have children that have been victim zed that
wer e unknown, you can then offer them treatnent.” She renarked
that she is not really working to cure sex offenders, but is
giving themtools to be able to manage their problem She noted
that [researchers] obtain a lot of information from offenders,
which is shared with supervising officers so that the officers
can understand the patterns and can intervene before the

of fender reoffends. If the offender does reoffend, the
i nformati on obtained through treatnent and pol ygraph testing can
hel p catch the offender sooner. She then presented information

on a study that showed the inportance of conbining treatnent
wi th pol ygraph testing.

2:51: 07 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 16, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked what is being done wth the
i nformati on about past crines if it is not used to prosecute the
of f ender.

M5. HEIL replied that [in Colorado], because of the self-
incrimnation aspect, offenders are not asked for the nanmes of
the victins. However, if the name is determnable, then it is
reported to social services. Wen the name of the victimis not
known, the details surrounding the offense are used to set
paraneters for prevention goals and for parole conditions.

2:54: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if parole is withdrawn if a person is
determ ned to be a repeat sex offender.

M5. HEIL replied, "No, that has not been one of the responses.”
She detailed sone of the things that occur in Colorado in such
si tuations.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if it is true that repeat offenders
are less |likely to succeed at treatnent than single-tine
of f enders.

M5. HEIL remarked that in all of her years working with sex
of fenders, there were only two with a single-tinme offense. She
commented, "The unfortunately thing is [that] people who commt
sex offenses can get away with this for years, so by the tine
we're dealing with themin the crimnal justice system it's a
very entrenched problem"”

2:57:28 PM
M5. HEI L conti nued:

Sex of fender t r eat ment is very different t han
traditional treat ment. It's treat ment W th
accountability.... In sex offender treatnent, you're
very focused on [relaying the nessage], "It's not okay
to hurt people; you need to be changing your
lifestyle." There are consequences for the choices
that you nake and you want to build those consequences
in, so if they choose not to participate in treatnent,
choose not to follow their conditions of parole, there
should be consequences that imediately kick in at
t hat point. You want to focus on the present and you
want to see that they're changing their behavior and

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 16, 2005



you check to verify it. You don't just accept their
word for it. And that is very different than what we
traditionally do in treatnent. The client is the
comunity as nuch as it 1is sex offenders; we're
wor ki ng towards public safety.

M5. HEIL turned attention to a study regarding the inpacts of
different types of treatnents on recidivism rates. She noted
that there is an increase in recidivismrates for those treated
W th psychot herapy, "so the wong kind of treatnment can be very
damagi ng. " She pointed out the cognitive-behavioral treatnent
that she uses for sex offenders reduces recidivism by about
hal f .

VS. HEI L, in response to Chair MQire, comented that
psychotherapy may give the offender insight but doesn't
necessarily change the behavi ors.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER opined that the recidivism rates in
presentation are | ow, and asked whether they were accurate.

M5. HEIL offered her belief that the presented rates are very
| ow and i naccurate. She referred to charts and expl ai ned that
of offenders who were released w thout treatnent, 52 percent
were successful on parole. O offenders who were rel eased after
two phases of treatnent, 84 percent were successful; she
characterized this as a cost savings. She turned to another
chart which shows that offenders who had parole supervision as
they were transitioning out of parole had the |owest violent
arrest rate within one year, while the offenders who had no
parole or treatnment had the highest rate.

M5. HEIL described another study regarding where sex offenders
live after release from prison. The conclusion was that the
of fenders who had the highest nunber of violations were those
living with famly nenbers. She remarked that famly nenbers
are caring, but many tinmes they are also enabling. The
offenders with the best outcome were those who were living in
arrangenents with other sex offenders where they were frequently
nonitored and in treatnent. She enphasized the inportance of
preparing an of fender's support system

CHAI R MGUl RE asked about Col orado's sex offender registry.
M5. HEIL replied that there have not been any problens with the

Col orado registry. She then turned to the cost benefits of the
treat ment program She stated that each taxpayer dollar spent

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -15- March 16, 2005



on a cognitive-behavioral treatnent program wth adult sex
of fenders returns between $1.19 and $5.27 in victim and taxpayer
benefits.

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHI LL asked about other transiti on neasures.

M5. HEIL stated that sone prograns focus on treating the
individuals in the location that they're going to be returning
to in order to set up a concrete plan for how they shoul d manage
their risk. She noted that this takes effort and resources, but

if the individual 1is not wunder supervision and not under
treatnment, it wll be very easy to drift back into the old
behavi or.

3:09: 39 PM

M5. HEIL relayed that in Colorado, famly neetings were offered
around the state so that as many people as possible can attend.
She nentioned that another option would be to have the offender
make a video taped nessage for his/her famly.

CHAIR McGQUI RE noted that |awrakers have discussed that perhaps
of fenders should just be incarcerated for |ife because the
recidivismrates are so high. She asked if the studies will be
hel pful to | awrakers when they consider the issues of sentencing
and deterrence net hods.

M5. HEIL pointed out that it is very expensive to keep a person
| ocked up for life, but there are offenders that wll never be
safe in the conmunity. Col orado has instituted lifetine
supervi sion, and the offender can earn their way off of lifetine
supervision wth 10-20 years of conpliance wth probation. She
opined that this is a nore cost-effective program because
of fenders can be contained and continually tested.

3:14: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL |i kened the problemto al coholismissues.
CHAIR McGQUJ RE noted that Al aska ranks high in the categories of
rape, sexual assault, and al coholism She stated that evidence

shows that perpetrators seek to reoffend.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if offenders are less likely to
reoffend if they are under treatnent and supervi sion.

M5. ENGLISH replied affirmatively.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -16- March 16, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GARA commented that it would be worth it to
consider the lifetime parole idea, but it mght be difficult in
certain parts of the Al aska.

CHAIR MGURE agreed that the Ilifetinme parole idea was a
possibility.

3:18:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL opi ned that polygraph accountability is a
"better |eash than many things."

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT asked [what the State of Colorado would do]
if, during the course of an evaluation when an immunity
arrangenment has been worked out, it is discovered that the
i ndividual commtted an of fense in another state.

M5. HEIL replied that there are no imunity arrangenents in
Col orado, and she stated that the location of the crinme is what
determ nes whether the crine will be prosecuted.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if there are other states wth
simlar prograns.

M5. ENGLISH replied that locations in Illinois, Oegon, Texas,
Utah, Arizona, California, Vernont, New York, and Massachusetts
use simlar prograns.

3:23:43 PM

MR. JENKS showed the commttee a conputer printout of a test
taken recently by a sex offender in order to denonstrate how the
pol ygraph wor ks.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whet her there has been any change
in the trend which holds that results from polygraphs are
i nadm ssible in court.

MR,  JENKS answered that there has not been any change,
indicating that he prefers it that way. He listed what he views
would be the pitfalls of having the results of polygraphs be
adm ssible in court.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if there are situations whereby
stipul ati on pol ygraph tests are adm ssi bl e.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- March 16, 2005



MR. JENKS replied affirmatively.

HB 103 - CLAI M5 AGAI NST THE STATE

3:31:53 PM

CHAI R McGUI RE announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 103, "An Act requiring an actionable claim
against the state to be tried without a jury."

CHAIR MGU RE noted that HB 103 also has a House Finance
Commttee referral.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON noved to report HB 103 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA objected for the purpose of discussion. He
asked Ms. Voigtlander, Departnment of Law, for a rough estinate,
enconpassing the last few of years, of the state's paynents for
the type of tort cases that are being addressed by HB 103.

GAI L VO GTLANDER, Chief Assistant Attorney Ceneral - Statew de
Section Supervisor, Torts and W rker's Conpensation Section,
Cvil Division (Anchorage), Departnent of Law (DOL), said she
didn't have that such information available, but indicated that
she would research what those anmounts were for the |ast couple
of years. She added, "This bill would also inplicate sone other
types of cases, and so | will try to make a cut as to cases that
fall within [AS] 09.50.250, what that universe is in ternms of
state payouts for the last two to three years.™

REPRESENTATI VE GARA opined that the bill cuts both ways wth
regard to cases involving the state in that sonetines the state
will do better in front of a jury and sonetinmes the state wll

do better in front of a judge. He asked Ms. Voi gtl ander whet her
she thinks that the state mght actually do better in front of
jury when the case involves a claimbrought by a prisoner.

M5. VO GTLANDER said she is not confortable venturing an opinion
on that issue, though she is prepared to answer factual cases
about the bill

3:36:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered his understanding that AS
09. 50. 250 generally pertains to "non-contractual clains."

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 18- March 16, 2005



M5. VO GTLANDER concurred with his understanding, but noted that
sonme other types of cases would be affected by AS 09.50. 250,
such as certain enploynent actions filed against the state -
li ke wongful discharge actions - and sone counterclains
pertaining to certain types of condemati on actions.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether, if the bill passes, one
woul d be able to bring a contractual claim against the state and
have it be heard by a jury, and whether such can be done now.

M5. VO GTLANDER, characterizing her area of ©practice as
i sol ated, declined to venture a response.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Voigtlander to provide
information regarding "who has requested jury trials - have they
been the state or the other party.”

M5. VO GTLANDER explained that such information would not be
avail able short of pulling up everyone's case, file by file,
because such information is not <collected into a database.
However, based on her experience, just in seeing the paperwork
flow in, she said that it is the exception for a plaintiff to
not ask for a jury.

3:39: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT asked whether there is any factual or
statistical information which shows that a trial-by-jury
decision is rendered faster than a decision nmade by a judge.

MS. VO GTLANDER rel ayed that she is struggling with an answer to
that question because the work in her section al nost exclusively
involves jury trials, since plaintiffs generally ask for a jury
trial, and therefore she doesn't have experience wth court
trials.

CHAIR McGQU RE pointed out that the Alaska Court Systemis fisca
note indicates a potential savings to the state because of a
reduction in yearly jury costs.

3:41:. 04 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARA offered the following reasons that a trial
by jury is better than a trial by a judge: having 12 - or, in

sone instances, 6 people - together is nore likely to result in
a just decision, since an individual judge is no better than

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -19- March 16, 2005



individual jurors are at renenbering facts; regardless of
whether the case is against a private party or the state, "a
victim' has the right to a trial by his/her peers; the right to
a jury trial is an inportant right, one that is denocratic,
wi se, and works better than having a decision rendered by one
person. He added:

It's six of one and a half dozen of the other when you
tal k about which one results in a bigger verdict, and
| think there are sonme plaintiffs who' d rather have a

trial in front of a judge. | think if you're a
prisoner or sonebody with a background that's not very
synpat hetic, you'd rather have a trial in front of
judge, not a jury, and in those cases | think the
state would request a jury trial, but ... won't be
able to under this bill anynore.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said that his experience has shown him that
as a judge gets nore and nore cases, a judge's decision can be
del ayed for a long tine - sonetinmes for nonths - whereas a jury
must make a decision right at the end of trial, generally within
one to three days. He again expressed a preference for the jury
trial process.

CHAIR MGUIRE noted that the procedure that HB 103 proposes to
institute had been in place in Alaska prior to 1975, and offered
her understanding that such a procedure has been characterized

as nore efficient. And al though there are times when a jury
trial is nore appropriate, she remarked, it is also a nore
expensi ve procedure. She also offered her wunderstanding that

the procedure was changed for the benefit of the University of
Al aska, which, in University of Alaska v. National Aircraft
| easing, Ltd., 536 P.2d 121, 128-29 (Al aska 1975), had asked for
a jury trial and been denied. She remarked that a |ot of other
states have a simlar procedure in place, and suggested that
Representative Gara's argunent regarding "six of one half a
dozen of another" actually speaks for the bill. I n concl usion

she said she doesn't think that the rights of Alaskan's are
going to inpaired greatly by the passage of HB 103, and
expressed confidence that Al aska's judges wll make the right
decisions [in cases against the state].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that when the Magna Charta was
signed, one of the nobst inportant rights that was granted to the

English people was the right of a jury trial. That is a
fundanental right, he opined, and a fundanental tenet of "our"
system of government. One of the only areas in which the right

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 20- March 16, 2005



of a jury trial was denied, and which he characterized as a
l egal antiquity, was the right to sue "the Crown" because the
king can do no wong. But that's not the way it should be, he
argued, because "the king" can obviously do wong and is found
to do wong every tine there's a judgnent against the king - or
the queen, or the state, or the country.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered his wunderstanding that the
El eventh Amendnent to the U S. Constitution has been interpreted
as prohibiting the U S. Governnent from being sued without its
consent, adding that Congress has largely granted that consent,
and opined that this is why the Alaska State Constitution says
that the state can be sued if the |legislature consents, which it
has done. He offered his belief that no one has sited any
instance where the right of a jury trial has been granted by
wai vi ng sovereign immnity and then subsequently taken away from

t he peopl e. "This is a very serious step; | am unaware of any
ci rcunst ance, anywhere, where the right of a jury trial has been
given and then subsequently denied, ... particularly here,

w t hout any showing at all that [the right] has been abused," he
added.

CHAIR McGUIRE said that Representative Guenberg's points are
wel | taken, but suggested that he is straying a bit beyond the
topic of the bill and into the area of sovereign immnity. She
pointed out that when the state is sued, it is the people
t hensel ves who are being sued. She opined that HB 103 does not
restrict the right to sue the state, rather it nerely proposes
t hat when one does sue the state, the decision will be nade by a
judge, not a jury; the bill addresses the question of what is
the nore efficient nethod of exacting justice in a way that can
be met by the state's resources.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered his belief, however, that
taking away the right to a jury trial does restrict one's right
[to sue the state].

CHAIR McGU RE countered, "It doesn't restrict your right to sue,
and that's the area you were treading into in terns of suing
"the Crown.""

3:49: 26 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives MQuire, Anderson

Kott, and Dahlstrom voted in favor of reporting HB 103 from
commttee. Representatives G uenberg and Gara voted against it.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -21- March 16, 2005



Therefore, HB 103 was reported from the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee by a vote of 4-2.

CHAIR McGU RE asked Ms. Voigtlander to forward to the entire
commttee any additional information she obtains regarding the
i ssues di scussed.

[HB 103 was reported fromcommttee.]

ADJ OURNVENT

3:50: 00 PM

The House Judiciary Standing Commttee was recessed at 3:50 p.m
to a call of the Chair. [The neeting was never reconvened. ]

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -22- March 16, 2005



